

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE
AS PASSED BY THE
One Hundred and Sixth Legislature
1ST SPECIAL SESSION
JANUARY 2, 1974 TO MARCH 29, 1974
AND BY THE
One Hundred and Seventh Legislature
REGULAR SESSION
JANUARY 1, 1975 TO JULY 2, 1975

PUBLISHED BY THE DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE RESEARCH IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REVISED STATUTES OF 1964, TITLE 3,
SECTION 164, SUBSECTION 6.

THE KNOWLTON AND MCLEARY COMPANY
FARMINGTON, MAINE
1975

PUBLIC LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE
One Hundred and Seventh Legislature

1975

ment of Agriculture. A veterinarian employed by the State or any licensed veterinarian may quarantine such pet shop ~~or~~, boarding kennel and kennel in person or by registered mail, and such quarantine shall be maintained as long as the ~~Commissioner of Agriculture~~ commissioner deems necessary.

The commissioner may revoke or suspend a pet shop ~~or~~, kennel and boarding kennel license providing any person, firm or corporation maintaining such pet shop ~~or~~, kennel and boarding kennel violates any quarantine or maintains animals or birds contrary to the rules and regulations promulgated by the commissioner or fails to keep records required by the commissioner.

Sec. 4. 7 MRSA § 3451, last paragraph, as enacted by PL 1971, c. 453, is amended to read:

Any person, firm or corporation maintaining a pet shop ~~or~~, boarding kennel or kennel without having obtained a license for the same, or after any license has been revoked or suspended, shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$50 per day.

Effective October 1, 1975

CHAPTER 237

AN ACT to Change Weights and Related Provisions for Commercial Vehicles.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. 29 MRSA § 246, as amended by PL 1973, c. 714, § 2, is further amended by inserting after the first paragraph the following:

A registration fee of \$15 shall be paid for each thousand pounds or portion thereof of gross weight a vehicle is registered for in excess of 73,280 pounds.

Sec. 2. 29 MRSA § 246, 5th ¶, as last amended by PL 1973, c. 614, § 4, is repealed.

Sec. 3. 29 MRSA § 1611, first sentence is amended to read:

Whoever as owner, driver, operator or mover of any engine, team, vehicle or contrivance mentioned in sections 902, 1702, 1703, 1753 and 1754 violates any provision of said sections or the regulations made or permits granted under authority thereof shall be liable to a fine of not less than \$10 nor more than \$500, for each offense, except that in the case of vehicles exceeding weight limits on bridges posted by the Department of Transportation or on bridges posted by others for weight limits approved by the Commissioner of Transportation, a fine of \$40 for each full 1,000 pounds of such excess shall be paid, provided that said fine shall not exceed \$1,000.

Sec. 4. 29 MRSA § 1652, as amended is repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

§ 1652. Weight of commercial vehicles limited

1. Gross weight limits.

A. No vehicle or combination of vehicles shall be operated, or caused to be operated, on or over any way or bridge when the gross weight, actual weight of vehicle and load, exceeds 80,000 pounds. No vehicles having 2 axles shall be so operated, or caused to be operated, when the gross weight exceeds 34,000 pounds; no vehicle or combination of vehicles having 3 axles shall be so operated, or caused to be operated, when the gross weight exceeds 54,000 pounds; no vehicle or combination of vehicles having 4 axles shall be so operated, or caused to be operated, when the gross weight exceeds 69,000 pounds; no vehicle or combination of vehicles having 5 or more axles shall be so operated, or caused to be operated, when the gross weight exceeds 80,000 pounds. Vehicles may be operated, or caused to be operated on the Interstate Highway System, as defined in the Federal Highway Act of 1956, with a maximum gross weight permitted by this subsection, provided such gross weights do not exceed the following formula:

$$W = 500 \left(\frac{LN}{N-1} + 12N + 36 \right)$$

W = gross weight L = overall distance between extreme axles

N = number of axles

and in no case shall such gross weight limits exceed 80,000 pounds.

B. The maximum gross weight permitted by this section for combination vehicles having 4 axles shall be reduced by 1,000 pounds for each foot the distance is less than 18 feet between the centers of the extreme axles, excluding the steering axle, measured to the nearest foot; the maximum gross weight permitted for combination vehicles having 5 axles shall be reduced by 2,000 pounds for each foot such distance is less than 24 feet between the centers of the extreme axles, excluding the steering axle, measured to the nearest foot; and the maximum gross weight permitted for combination vehicles having 6 or more axles shall be reduced by 2,000 pounds for each foot such distance is less than 30 feet between the centers of extreme axles, excluding the steering axle, measured to the nearest foot. This paragraph shall not apply to combination vehicles having 6 or more axles with a distance of not less than 29 feet between extreme axles, excluding the steering axle, measured to the nearest foot until November 1, 1979. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall permit, validate or in any way apply to the use of the Interstate Highway System as defined by the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1956 by vehicles with overall gross weights in excess of the applicable maximum gross weights permitted by section 1652, subsection 1, paragraph A.

C. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Title, as amended, or as may be subsequently amended, beginning with the 1976 model year, no motor vehicle having a gross vehicle weight in excess of 10,000 pounds shall be operated, or caused to be operated, with a gross weight that exceeds the gross weights certified by the manufacturer. Only the manufacturer of a vehicle chassis that meets federal standards as they apply to their vehicles or their franchised dealer shall be authorized to certify the gross vehicle weight of a vehicle. Proof of such certified gross vehicle weight shall be permanently affixed to the vehicle or carried in or about the vehicle and displayed on demand of any police officer and such evidence of a certified

gross vehicle weight shall contain the vehicle identification number to which it applies, if such is not permanently attached to the vehicle.

D. The following vehicles are permitted on the Interstate Highway System:

(1) All 3-axle trucks with brakes on the wheels of all axles, hauling forest products or raw ore from mine or quarry to place of processing, may be operated with a gross weight of 48,000 pounds with a distance between extreme axles of not less than 18 feet;

(2) All 3-axle trucks with brakes on the wheels of all axles, hauling construction materials, may be operated with a gross weight of 48,000 pounds with a distance between extreme axles of not less than 16 feet.

2. Axle weight limits.

A. One axle, or 2 axles less than 4 feet apart, shall be considered as a single axle unit; 2 or more axles at least 4 feet and not more than 8 feet apart shall be considered as a tandem axle unit; 3 axles measuring more than 8 feet between the first and 3rd axles and less than 12 feet shall be considered as a tri-axle unit; and if a single axle unit is closer than 10 feet, or in the case of a steering axle 9 feet, to the nearest axle of a tri-axle unit, the gross weight on the 4 axles shall not exceed that allowed for a tri-axle unit.

B. No vehicle shall be operated, or caused to be operated, with a gross weight exceeding 22,000 pounds on a single axle unit, 38,000 pounds on a tandem axle unit or 48,000 pounds on a tri-axle unit, specifically excepting the Interstate Highway System as defined in the Federal Highway Act of 1956, where the tandem axle unit limit shall be 34,000 pounds; and provided that:

(1) Nothing contained in section 1655 shall permit an axle or tandem axle weight on the Interstate Highway System as defined in the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1956 in excess of the limits established for such system in this section;

(2) No single axle of a tandem axle unit shall support more than 60% of the total weight supported by such tandem axle unit;

(3) No single axle of a tri-axle unit shall support more than 40% of the total weight supported by such tri-axle unit;

(4) The gross weight of a vehicle shall not be increased by the addition of a trailing axle, so called, unless such axle supports at least 50% of the added weight permitted by the addition of such trailing axle.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Title, no vehicle shall be operated or caused to be operated when the load imparted to the road surface is greater than 600 pounds per inch width tire, manufacturer's rating.

3. Prima facie evidence. The operation of the vehicle shall be prima facie evidence that said operation was caused by the person, firm or corporation holding the permit or certificate for said vehicle from the Public Utilities Commission.

4. Brake requirements.

A. Every truck, tractor, truck tractor, trailer and semitrailer shall be equipped with adequate brakes acting on all wheels of all axles, except that:

(1) Any truck, tractor or truck tractor having 3 or more axles need not have brakes on the front wheels except when any such vehicle is equipped with 2 or more steerable axles the wheels of one such axle need not be equipped with brakes;

(2) Any trailer or semitrailer not exceeding a gross weight of 3,000 pounds;

(3) Any vehicle towed by use of a wrecker; and

(4) Any vehicle meeting braking requirements of the motor carrier safety regulations of the U. S. Department of Transportation shall be considered adequate.

Sec. 5. 29 MRSA § 1654, first 4 paragraphs, as amended, are repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

Any person who violates any weight provision for any axle or group of axles or gross weight, if convicted, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor on account of each such violation and for each violation of which convicted shall be punished by a fine. When both gross and axle weights are exceeded, the fine shall be imposed on whichever excess is the greater.

The court shall apply the following schedule in determining the fine to be imposed; said fine to be based upon the amount of gross weight or axle weight in excess of the limits prescribed in section 1652. The fines shall apply when such excess is less than 2,000 pounds only when such excess is intentional.

Percent over basic weight allowed in section 1652	Fine schedule
1	\$10
2	\$20
3	\$30
4	\$40
5	\$50
6	\$60
7	\$70
8	\$80
9	\$90

Percent over basic weight
allowed in section 1652

Fine schedule

10	\$100
11	\$120
12	\$140
13	\$160
14	\$180
15	\$200
16	\$220
17	\$240
18	\$260
19	\$280
20	\$300
21	\$320
22	\$340
23	\$360
24	\$380
25	\$400
26	\$420
27	\$440
28	\$460
29	\$480
30	\$500
31	\$525
32	\$550
33	\$575
34	\$600
35	\$625

Percent over basic weight allowed in section 1652	Fine schedule
36	\$650
37	\$675
38	\$700
39	\$725
40	\$750
41	\$800
42	\$850
43	\$900
44	\$950
45 or greater	\$1000

In addition to the penalties enumerated in this section, there shall be, for vehicles using the Interstate Highway System as defined in the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1956, a fine of \$20 and cost of court when the maximum weight permitted on an axle, tandem axle or the gross weight is in excess of those limits established, for said system, in section 1652 or the tri-axle limit established in section 1652 or section 1655, whichever is applicable by less than 2,000 pounds.

Sec. 6. 29 MRSA § 1655, as amended is repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

§ 1655. Weight tolerance for certain vehicles

The operation on the highways of any vehicle loaded entirely with firewood, sawed lumber, dimension lumber, pulpwood, wood chips, logs, soils, unconsolidated rock materials, bolts, farm produce, road salt, manufacturer's concrete products, building materials which absorb moisture during delivery originating and terminating within the State, or dump trucks, tractor dump trucks or transit-mix concrete trucks carrying highway construction materials; or any vehicle loaded with a majority of products requiring refrigeration, whether by ice or mechanical equipment, and on such vehicles when inspected by the Maine State Police, the number of the seal shall be recorded and the number of the new seal shall be recorded by the Maine State Police, the operation on the highways of any vehicle loaded with raw ore from mine or quarry to place of processing shall not be deemed to be in violation if the gross weight of such vehicle does not exceed 110% of the maximum gross weight for which such vehicle is then registered, nor 110% of the maximum gross weight permitted for such vehicle by section 1652, and provided that the maximum axle loads for these vehicles do not exceed 24,200 pounds for a single axle unit, 46,000 pounds for a tandem axle unit and 54,000 pounds for a tri-axle unit, except that 64,000 pounds shall be permitted on the tri-axle unit of a 4-axle motor vehicle hauling forest products until November 1, 1979.

A vehicle or combination of vehicles may be operated or caused to be operated on the Interstate Highway System, as defined in the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1956, with a gross weight which exceeds 73,280 pounds, if such gross weight permitted by this section does not exceed the formula in section 1652.

The provisions of this section, as they relate to weight tolerances, shall not apply to motor vehicles manufactured prior to the 1976 model year when the model year of such a vehicle is 10 or more years prior to the year for which registered.

Sec. 7. 29 MRSA § 1656, first paragraph is repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

No person shall operate, or cause to be operated, any vehicle with a gross weight that is more than 10% above that gross weight specified in the registration certificate for such vehicles having a gross weight of not over 15,000 pounds and 5% for vehicles with a gross weight specified in the registration certificate of over 15,000 pounds; provided that no vehicle or combination of vehicles shall be operated on the highway with a gross weight that exceeds those limits established by this Title.

Sec. 8. Allocation. There is allocated from the General Highway Fund the sum of \$10,000 to cover the cost of establishing safe weight limits on bridges throughout the State of Maine.

Effective October 1, 1975

CHAPTER 238

AN ACT Relating to Employment of Minors.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. 26 MRSA § 771, first sentence, is amended to read:

No child under 14 years of age shall be employed, permitted or suffered to work in, about or in connection with any eating place, automatic laundries, retail establishment where frozen dairy products are manufactured on the premises, sporting or overnight camp ~~or~~, mercantile establishment ~~or in outdoor occupations on the grounds of a hotel~~, and no child between the ages of 14 and 16 years shall be so employed when the distance between the work place and the home of the child, or any other factor, necessitates the child's remaining away from home overnight.

Sec. 2. 26 MRSA § 773 is amended by adding at the end a new paragraph to read:

The provisions of this section pertaining to hotels shall not apply to minors under 16 years of age who are employed in outdoor occupations on the grounds of a hotel.

Effective October 1, 1975